
HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty-Second Annual Report of the Company together 
with Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2020. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Financial Results are as under: 
(Rs. in lakh) 

Particulars Year Ended on Year Ended on 
3tst March 2020 31st March 2019 

Total Revenue from Operations 18.41 15.07 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 17.56 14.44 
Less: Provision for Tax 5.03 14.84 
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 12.53 (0.40) 
Retained Earnings 109.99 99.97 

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

In view of the lockdown across the country due to COVID-19 pandemic, the business operation of the 
company has not been affected. The Company is taking all the necessary steps and precautionary 
measures to ensure smooth functioning of its operations. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

APPLICATION FOR FRESH REGISTRATION AS NBFC: 

The Company originally had Certificate of Registration (COR) which was cancelled by The Reserve 
Bank of India on account of non availability of NOF of Rs. 200 lacs inspite of the intrinsic value of the 
Company being more than Rs. 756 lacs and Rs. 978 lacs as on 31.03.2017 and 31.03.2018 respectively. 
The Company subsequently achieved NOF of 200 lacs on 28th September 2018 by liquidating some of 
its investments. The Company filed an appeal before the appropriate authority which was rejected vide 
its Order dated 8th June, 2020. In view of the above the Company has liquidated its investments so as to 
comply with the RBI Press Release no. 1998-99 /1269 dated 8th April, 1999 wherein the financial 
assets of the Company have now been reduced to less than 50% of the total assets. However, the Board 
of Directors have applied for a fresh registration with Reserve Bank of India as a NBFC so that the 
Company can carry on its investment activities. 

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year. 

SHARE CAP IT AL 

There is no change in the Share Capital of the Company in the current Financial Year. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. V Matta, Director, retires by rotation under 
the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 



Mr. AK Basu, Director of the Company resigned with effect from 18th May, 2019. The Board recorded 
its appreciation of the valuable support, guidance and contribution extended by Mr. A K Basu to the 
Company during his years as a valued member. 

Mr. AV Lodha, Director of the Company resigned with effect from 211d July, 2020. The Board recorded 
its appreciation of the valuable support, guidance and contribution extended by Mr. AV Lodha to the 
Company during his years as a valued member. 

Mr. lndranil Choudhury (DIN: 00217838) has been appointed as an Additional Director with effect 
from 211 ct July, 2020 to hold office upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The 
Company has received a notice from a Member, under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
signifying intention to propose his candidature as a Director. Your Directors recommend his 
appointment subject to approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

RESERVES: 

The Company has transferred Rs. 2.51 lakhs to Statutory Reserve Account. 

MEETINGS 

During the year five meetings of the Board of Directors were convened and held on 05.04.2019, 
18.05.2019, 30.08.2019, 09.12.2019and11.02.2020. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REMARK 

M/s. ALPS & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. FRN 313132E) existing Auditors of the 
Company, were appointed for a period of 5 (five) years by the Members of the Company in the 29th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 17th July 2017. By virtue of the amendment made in 
the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, the Company is not required to place before the Annual 
General Meeting the matter pertaining to ratification of appointment of auditors. 

The Auditors' Report for fiscal year 2020 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark. The Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report. 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

As on 31st March 2020, the Company does not have any Subsidiary/ Associate Company. 

DEPOSITS 

The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits from the Public during the year ended 31st March 
2020 under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

ANNUAL RETURN 

In pursuance to the provisions of Section 134(3) read with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and amendments thereon from time to time, the documents as stated therein are being attached as 
"Annexure A." 

AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION & STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Provisions of Section 177 with respect to the Constitution of Audit Committee and provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring setting up of a Nomination and Remuneration and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee do not apply to our Company. 



DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS, COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING GOING CONCERN AND COMPANY'S OPOERATION 

The Company had received an order dated 29th October, 2018 from Reserve Bank of India enclosing 
an Order intimating about the cancellation of Certificate of Registration under the RBI Act, 1934 on the 
ground of not attaining the Net Owned Fund of Rs. 2 crores as prescribed by the RBI. The Company has 
filed an appeal against the above Order with the appropriate authorities intimating that the actual Net 
worth of the Company was much higher than the threshold limit of Rs. 2 crore as prescribed by RBI if 
market values of its investments were considered and to avoid any further ambiguity and comply. The 
Company had divested some investments in September 2018 and already attained the Net Owned 
Fund criteria of Rs. 2 crores before the said order was received. However, the Company has now 
received an Order dated 08.06.2020 from Appellate Authority under section 45-IA (7) of Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934 cancelling the certificate of Registration and rejected the Appeal filed by the 
Company. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

There has been no transaction with any related party as specified under clause (a) to (g) of sub-section 
(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT 

The main identified risks at the Company are Commercial Risks and Financial Risks. Your Company has 
established a comprehensive Risk Management System to ensure that risk to the Company's continued 
existence as a going concern and to its development are identified and addressed on timely basis. Risk 
Management strategy as approved by the Board of Directors is implemented by the Company 
Management. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

The profit of the Company in the immediately preceding financial year is less than the amount 
specified under section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 as amended by the Companies (Amendment) 
Act, 2017 and, thereby, provision of Corporate Social Responsibilities and obligations thereof are not 
applicable to the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

The Company has not taken or given any loans, guarantees and investments covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH 

The requirement for disclosure of information under Section 134(3)(M) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to Conservation of Energy and 
Technology absorption are not applicable as no manufacturing or trading activities were carried out 
during the year. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO 

The Company has not used or earned any foreign exchange during the year. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company is not required to set up an Internal Complaints Committee as per the provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 



DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under section 149( 4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 hence no declaration is required. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

As stipulated in Section 134(3) (C) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors subscribe to the 
"Directors' Responsibility Statement" and confirm as under: 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, 
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures, if any; 

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note 1 of the Notes to the Financial Statements 
have been selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates have been made 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March 2020 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that 
date 

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

e) that the director has devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such system are adequate and operating effectively. 

Kolkata 
28th July, 2020 

On behalf of the Board 

I Choudhury 
Director 
DIN:00217838 

V Matta 
Director 
DIN: 00338911 



FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2020 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 
(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014. 

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

i CIN U67120\NB1987PLC043328 

ii Registration Date 23RD NOVEMBER 1987 

iii Name of the Company HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company COMPANY HAVING SHARE CAPITAL 

Address of the Registered office 13/3, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700001. 
v 

& contact details TEL NO. 033-22268619, 03322299124 

vi \Nhether listed company NO 

vii 
Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 
N. A. 

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

SL No 

1 

2 

3 

4 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 

stated 

Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover 

products/services Product /service of the company 

NON-BANKING FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES B-05.06541 100% 

Ill PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

SI No Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 

SUBSIDIARY/ 

ASSOCIATE 

1 ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA) LIMITED L749991NB1919PLC003516 HOLDING COMPANY 

2 

3 

Annexure 'A' 

%OF APPLICABLE 

SHARES SECTION 

HELD 

100 2(46) 



IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as% to total Equity) 

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change during 

the year 

Dem at Physical Total % of Total Dem at Physical Total % of Total 

Shares Shares 

A. Promoters 

(1) Indian 

a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt.or 

- - - - - - - - -
State Govt. 

c) Bodies Corporates - 2,19,988 2,19,988 99.9946 - 2,19,988 2,19,988 99.9946 -
d) Bank/Fl - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other - 12 12 0.0054 - 12 12 0.0054 -

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) - 2,20,000 2,20,000 100.0000 - 2,20,000 2,20,000 100.0000 -

(2) Foreign 

a) NRI- Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other Individuals - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - -
d) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other. .. - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -

Total Shareholding of 

Promoter - 2,20,000 2,20,000 100.0000 - 2,20,000 2,20,000 100.0000 -
(A)= (A)(l)+(A)(2) 

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 

(1) Institutions 

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - - -

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt. - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Fund - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

g) FllS - - - - - - - - -

h) Foreign Venture 
- - - - - - - - -

Capital Funds 

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (B)(l): - - - - - - - - -

(2) Non Institutions 

a) Bodies corporates 

i) Indian - - - - - - - - -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals 

i) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share capital - - - - - - - - -

upto Rs.1 lakh 

ii) Individuals shareholders 

holding nominal share capital - - - - - - - - -
in excess of Rs. 1 lakh 

c) Others (specify) 

i) Trusts - - - - - - - - -
ii) Clearing Member - - - - - - - - -



iii) Non Resident Individual - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (B)(Z): - - - - - - - - -

Total Public Shareholding 
- - - - - - - - -

(B)= (B)(l)+(B)(Z) 

C. Shares held by Custodian 
- - - - - - - -

for GDRs & ADRs 

Grand Total (A+B+C) - 2,20,000 2,20,000 100.0000 - 2,20,000 2,20,000 100.0000 -



(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS 

SI No. Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change in 

begginning of the year end of the year share holding 

during the 

year 

NO of shares %oftotalshares % of shares pledged NO of shares % of total shares % of shares pledged 

of the company encumbered to total of the company encumbered to total 

shares shares 

1 ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA} LIMITED 2,19,988 99.9946 - 2,19,988 99.9946 - -

2 
ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA} LIMITED 

2 0.0009 2 0.0009 
J/ A A. K. BASU 

- - -

3 
ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA} LIMITED 

2 0.0009 2 0.0009 
J/A V. MATTA 

- - -

4 
ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA} LIMITED 

2 0.0009 2 0.0009 
J/A P.K.PAL 

- - -

5 
ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA) LIMITED 

2 0.0009 2 0.0009 
J/A A. V. LODHA 

- - -

6 
ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA} LIMITED 

2 0.0009 2 0.0009 
J/A PRAKASH MAJUMDAR 

- - -

7 
ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA} LIMITED 

2 0.0009 2 0.0009 
J/A M. BANERJEE 

- - -

- -

Total 2,20,000 100.0000 2,20,000 100.0000 - -



(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE} 

SI. No. Share holding at the beginning of Cumulative Share holding during the 

the Vear year 

No. of Shares % of total shares of No of shares %oftotal 

the company shares of the 

company 

THERE IS NO CHANGE IN THE TOTAL SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS BETWEEN 01.04.2019 & 31.03.2020 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs} 

SI. No Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares % of total shares of No of shares % of total 

the company shares of the 

company 

NOT APPLICABLE 

(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP 

SI. No Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year 

For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares % of total shares of No of shares % of total 

the company shares of the 

company 

NOT APPLICABLE 



V INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total 

excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness 

lndebtness at the beginning of the 

financial year 

i) Principal Amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

I I 
Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -

I I 
Change in Indebtedness during the 

financial year 

Additions - - - -

Reduction - - - -

Net Change - - - -

Indebtedness at the end of the 

financial year 

i) Principal Amount - - - -

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

I I 
Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: 

SI.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) 
- - - - - -

of the Income Tax. 1961. 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) of the Income tax Act, - - - - - -

1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) of the 
- - - - - -

Income Tax Act, 1961 

2 Stock option - - - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - - - -
4 Commission! - - - - - -

as% of profit - - - - - -

others (specify) - - - - - -
5 Others, please specify - - - - - -

Total (A) - - - - - -
Ceiling as per the Act - - - - - -



B. Remuneration to other directors: 

SI.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount 

1 Independent Directors I 
(a) Fees for attending -

board committee meetings 

(b) Commission -
(c) Others, please specify I -

Total (1) -
2 Other Non Executive Directors 

(a) Fee for attending -

board committee meetings 

(b) Commission -
(c) Others, please specify. I -
Total (2) -
Total (B)=(l+2) I -
Total Managerial Remuneration 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act. -

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

SI. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total 

1 Gross Salary I 
(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) - - -
of the Income Tax Act, 

1961. 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) of the Income Tax Act, - - -
1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) of the 
- - -

Income Tax Act, 1961 

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission as % of Profit - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total - - -



VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeall made 

the Description Penalty/Punish (RD/NCLT/C if any (give 

Companies ment/Compoun ourt) details) 

Act ding fees 

imposed 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -



ALPS & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of HERBERT HOLDINGSLIMITED, 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

310, TOOi CHAMBERS 
2, Lalbazar Street, 
Kolkata - 700 001 

Phone : 2230 5621, 4005 1458 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED ("the 
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the statement of Profit and 
Loss, statement of changes in equityand statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit, changes in 
equityand its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
theAuditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statementssection of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethicsissued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 25 in the financial statements, which indicates that during the year under 
review, The Appellate Authority of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has rejected the Company's appeal 
against RBl's order dated October 29, 2018 (Appellate Order) cancelling the Company's Certificate of 
Registration for the purpose of alleged failure to comply with the directions of RBI issued vide Circular No. 
RBl/2014-15/520 DNBF(PD) dated March 27, 2015 requiring all NBFCs to attend a Net Owned Fund 
(NOF) of Rs.200 lakhs by March 31, 2017. The Company has since made an application for registration 
as NBFC which is pending before RBI. Pending decision of the application, the financial statement is 
prepared as Going Concern Basis. As stated in Note 25, pending such decision, there is material 
uncertainty with subject to Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of this matter. 

Other Information 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholders 
Information but does not include in the financial statements and our auditor's report theron. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusions thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements of our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to be report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143) of the Act, we give in the Annexure "A" a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable to the Company. 

2. As required by the "Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report ( Reserve Bank) Directions, 
1998", we further state that we have submitted a Report to the Board of Directors of the Company 
containing a statement on the matters of supervisory concern to the Reserve Bank of India as 
specified in the said Directions, namely the following:-

i) The Company, incorporated prior to January 9, 1997, has applied for registration as 
provided in section 451A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). The 
Company has been granted certificate of registration as NBFC by the Reserve Bank of 
India & the Registration no. is 05.06541 dated 041hApril 2005. During the year The 
Appellate Authority of Reserve Bank of India has rejected the Company's appeal made 
against Reserve Bank of India's order cancelling the registration. The Company has 
made a new application for registration to Reserve bank of India. (Refer Note No. 25) 

ii) The assets/income pattern of the Company as on 31 51 March, 2020 is as follows: 

Investment Income to Total Income: 
Total Investment to Total Assets: 

HERBERT HOLDINGSLIMITED 
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In view of above ratios, the Company is entitled to hold Certificate of Registration issued 
by the Reserve bank of India as on 31.03.2019. 

iii) The Company has not been classified as Assets Finance Company as defined in Non­
Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
1998 with reference to the business carried on by it during the financial year under 
reference. 

iv) The Company has not been classified as Micro Finance Institutions as defined in Non­
Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institutions (Reserve Bank) Direction 2011 
with reference to the business carried on by it during the financial year under reference. 

v) The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution its meeting held on 091
h 

December, 2019 for not accepting any public deposit. 

vi) The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year under reference. 

vii) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, 
accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning of bad doubtful debts as 
specified in the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India in terms of the Non 
Banking Financial (Non-deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. 

3. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

3.1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

3.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law, have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those books. 

3.3. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of the account. 

3.4. In our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

3.5. On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2020 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 
from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

3.6. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure "B". 

3.7. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has not any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
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iii. There has been nodelay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Kolkata 
Dated: 281

h day of July, 2020 

HERBERT HOLDINGSLIMITED 

For A L PS & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's ICAI Regn~No. 31 

.. ~ 
\ 

(A.K.Khetawat) 
Partner 
M. No. 52751 

UDIN No.20052751AAAABS3596 
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the 
Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company of even date) 

1) The Company does not have any fixed assets and therefore reporting on provisions of clause 3(i) (a), 
(b) and (c) are not applicable to the Company. 

2) The Company is not having any inventory, and therefore reporting on provisions of clause 3(ii) is not 
applicable to the Company. 

3) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company does not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in 
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore, provisions of 
clauses 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company, 

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
given loans, made investments, given guarantees and provided securities covered by provisions of 
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

5) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, during the year, the 
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined under sections 73 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. 

6) The Company does not require for maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 
of the Act. 

7) (a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth 
Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax Cess and any other statutory dues 
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.According to information and explanations given to us, 
there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues which were outstanding as at 
31 51 March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the records of the Company and according to information and explanations given to us, 
the Company does not have any outstanding disputed statutory dues as on 31 5 March, 2020. 

8) The Company has not borrowed any amount from any financial institutions or banks or government or 
by way of issue of debenture, therefore provisions of clause 3(viii) of the order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

9) During the year, the Company has neither raised any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer nor taken any term loan therefore provisions on clause 3(ix) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

10) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, during the year, no material 
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit. 

11) During the year, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration and therefore provisions of 
clause 3(xi) of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

12) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

13) According to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no transaction with the 
related parties during the year and therefore clause 3(xiii) of the orders are not applicable of the 
Company. 

HERBERT HOLDINGSLIMITED 
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14) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures and therefore provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

15) According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him during the year and therefore provisions of clause 3(xv) of the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

16) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. The Company has obtained the Registration vide Registration No. 8.05.06541 dated 41hApril 
2005 During the year The Appellate Authority of Reserve Bank of India has rejected the Company's 
appeal made against Reserve Bank of India's order cancelling the registration. The Company has 
made a new application for registration to Reserve bank of India. (Refer Note No. 25) 

Kolkata 
Dated: 281

h day of July, 2020 

HERBERT HOLDINGSLIMITED 

For A L P S & CO. 
Chartered Acco~= 

Firm's ICAI Regn. No. 3~,.. 

(A.~et~wat) 
Partner 
M. No. 52751 

UDIN No.20052751AAAABS3596 
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HERBERT HOLDINGS 
LIMITED ("the Company"), as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Kolkata 
Dated: 281

h day of July, 2020 

HERBERT HOLDINGSLIMITED 

For A L P S & CO. 

Chartered A1~~~~ts Firm's ICAI Regn. N~ E 

(A.K.Khetawat) 
Partner 
M. No. 52751 

UDIN No.20052751AAAABS3596 
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HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

SI. No. Particulars 
Refer Note 

As at 31st March, 2020 
As at 31st March, 

As at 1st April, 2018 

ASSETS 

(I) Financial Assets 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(b} Investments 

Total Financial Assets 

(II) Non Financial Assets 

(a} Current Tax Assets (Net} 

Total Non Financial Assets 

Tota I Assets 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

(I) Financial Liabilities 

(a} Payables 

Trade Payables 

(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 

Total Financial Liabilities 

(II} Non Financial Liabilities 

(a} Current tax liabilities (Net} 

(b} Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

Total Non Financial Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

(Ill) Equity 

(a} Equity Share Capital 

(b) Other Equity 

Total Equity 

Total Liabilities and Equity 

Accompanying notes on financial statements 

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For ALPS & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regto 3~32E 

(~~v-'< 
AK Khetawat 

Partner 

Membership No. · 052751 

Place · Kolkata 

Date 28th July, 2020 

No. 2019 

5 2.61 

6 778.25 

780.86 

7 0.05 

0.05 

780.92 

8 

0.12 

0.12 

9 

10 142.24 

142.24 

142.35 

11 22.00 

12 616.56 

638.56 

780.92 

1- 27 

\/~ 
V. Matta ..--

Director 

DIN - 00338911 

1.31 3.45 

893.51 854.67 

894.82 858.12 

-

894.82 858.12 

0.12 0.12 

0.12 0.12 

0.02 

165.93 154.97 

165.95 154.97 

166.07 155.09 

22.00 22.00 

706.75 681.04 

728.75 703.04 

894.82 858.12 

For and on behalf of the Board 

iW~ 
I Choudhury 

Director 

DIN - 00217838 



HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020 

SI. No. Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 

(i) Dividend Income 

(ii) Net Gain on Fair value changes 

(I) Total Revenue from Operations 

(II) Total Income 

Expenses 

(i) Other Expenses 

(Ill) Total Expenses 

(IV) Profit before tax (II - 111) 

(V) Tax Expenses 

(i) Current Tax 

(ii) Deferred Tax - charge/( credit) 

(iii) Income Tax for earlier years 

Total Tax Expenses (V) 

(VI) Profit I (Loss) for the period (IV - V) 

(VII) Other Comprehensive Income 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(ii) Income Tax relating to above 

Total Other Comprehensive Income (i - ii) 

(VIII) Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VI+ VII) 

(IX) Earnings per equity share 

- Basic (Rs.) 

- Diluted (Rs.) 

Accompanying notes on financial statements 

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For ALPS & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

F;~13132E 

AK Khetawat 

Partner 

Membership No. : 052751 

Place : Kolkata 

Date: 28th July, 2020 

-, 

Refer Note 

No. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

16.3 

20 

1- 27 

V. Matta 

Director 

DIN - 00338911 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

0.26 0.84 

18.15 14.23 

18.41 15.07 

18.41 15.07 

0.85 0.63 

0.85 0.63 

17.56 14.44 

- 10.88 

4.99 3.96 

0.05 -

5.03 14.84 

12.53 (0.40) 

(131.40) 33.12 

(28.69) 7.01 

(102.72) 26.11 

(90.19) 25.71 

5.69 (0.18) 

5 69 (0.18) 

For and on behalf of the Board 

- l 0.,J~ 
I Choudhury 

Director 

DIN - 00217838 



(i) Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

As at 1st April, 2018 

Movement during the year 

As at 31st March, 2019 

Movement during the year 

As at 31st March, 2020 

(1i) Other Equity 

As at 31st March, 2020 

Particulars 

As at 31st March 2019 
Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 
Transferred from Retained earnings to Statutorv Reserve 
As at 31st March, 2020 

As at 31st March, 2019 

Particulars 

As at 1st April, 2018 

Loss for the year 

Other comorehens1ve income for the year 

Transferred to Retained earnings on Disposal of Equity Instruments 

Transferred from Retained earri1mrs to Statutorv Reserve 

As at 31st March 2019 

Refer Note No 12 for nature dnd purpose of reserves 

Accompanying notes on f1nanc1al statements 

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For ALPS & Co. 

C.hartered ~~·~~ts 

··~~ 
AK Khetawat 

Partner 

Membership No 052751 

Place Kolkata 

Dote 28th July, 2020 

HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2020 

Rs. m lakhs 

22.00 

22.00 

22.00 

Capital Reserve 

a.so 

0.50 

Capital Reserve 

1- 27 
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0.50 

0.50 

Reserves and Surplus 

Securities 
Capital 

Premium 
Revaluation Statutory Reserve 

Reserve 

48.00 0.01 22.68 

1151 
48.00 0.01 34.19 

Reserves and Surplus 

Securities 
Capital 

Premium 
Redemption Statutory Reserve 

Reserve 

48 00 0.Dl 13.51 

9.18 
48.00 0.Dl 22.68 

General Reserve 

20.00 

20.00 

General Reserve 

20.00 

20.00 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Equity Instruments through 
Total 

Retained Earnings Other Comprehensive Income 

99.97 515.59 706.75 
12.53 12.53 

(102.72) (102. 72) 

111 511 
100.99 412.88 616.56 

(Rs. 1n lakhs) 

Equity Instruments through 
Total 

Retained Earnings Other Comprehem1ve Income 

59.66 539.36 681.04 

(040) (0.40) 

26.11 26.11 
49.88 (49.88) 
(918) 

99.97 515.59 706. 75 

For and on behalf of the Board 

v~ ~ Q.w~ ,_ 

V. Matta 

Director 

DIN - 00338911 

I Choudhury 

Director 

DIN -00217838 



HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 March ,2019 

(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Profit before tax 17.56 14.44 

Adjustments: 
Net Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments (1815) (14.23) 

Operating Profit before working capital changes (0.59) 0.21 

Movements in working capital : 

lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables -

Cash generated from/(utilised in) operations (0.59) 0.21 

Direct taxes paid (0 11) (1087) 

Net Cash utilised in Operating Activities (A) (0.70) (10.65) 

(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Proceeds from sale of Investment 2.00 8.51 

Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B) 2.00 8.51 

(C)Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

Net Cash generated from/(utilised in) Financing Activities (C) - -

Net changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 1.30 (2.14) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1.31 3.45 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 2.61 1.31 

Notes:-

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out 1n Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) "Statement of Cash Flows" 

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the Balance Sheet date consists of: 

Particulars 

Balances with banks in current accounts 

Total 

Accompanying notes on financial statements 

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For ALPS & Co. 

AK Khetawat 

Partner 

Membership No .. 052751 

Place : Kolkata 

Date. 28th July, 2020 

1- 27 

(Amount in Rs.) 

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 

2.61 1.31 

2.61 1.31 

For and on behalf of the Board 

V,~, \ QM~ -V. Matta I Choudhury 

Director Director 

DIN - 00338911 DIN - 00217838 



HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1 

2 

3 

2.1 

Corporate Information 

Herbert Holdings Limited ('the Company") was registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC). However, on 15th June, 2018 the 

Reserve Bank of Indra (RBI) cancelled the Certificate of Registration on account of non-availability of Net Owned Fund (NOF) of Rs.200 lakhs 

insp1te of the intrinsic value of the Company being more than Rs.765 lakhs and Rs.978 lakhs as on 31st March, 2017 and 31st March, 2018 

respectively. The Company subsequently achieved NOF of Rs. 200 lakhs on 28th September, 2018 by liquidating some of its investments. 

The Company filed an appeal before the appropriate authority which was rejected v1de its order dated 8th June, 2020. In view of the above 

the Company has liquidated its investments so as to comply with the RBI press release no. 998/99/1269 dated 8th April, 1999 wherein the 

financial assets of the Company have now been reduced to less than 50% of the total assets. The Company has also filed a fresh application 

for registration as a NBFC with the RBI which rs pending. 

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS and Recent Pronouncements 

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 from 1st April, 

2019 and the effective date of such transition is 1st April, 2018. Such transition has been carried out from the erstwhile Accounting 

Standards notified under the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of Indra (collectively 

referred to as "the Previous GAAP") 

These are the Company's first Ind AS Financial Statements and the date of transition to Ind AS as required has been considered to be 1st 

April, 2018. 

The financial statements up to the year ended 31st March, 2019, were prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in 

accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and Accounting Standards as prescribed under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 then applicable (Previous GAAP) to the Company. Previous period 

figures in the Financial Statements have been recasted/restated to make it comparable with current year's figure. 

In accordance with Ind AS 101-"First Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards" (Ind AS 101), the Company has presented in Note No. 

21, a reconciliation of Shareholders' equity as given earlier under Previous GAAP and those considered in these accounts as per Ind AS as 

at 31st March, 2019, and 1st April, 2018 and also the Net Profit as per Previous GAAP and that arrived including Other Comprehensive 

Income under Ind AS for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 

2.2 Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

3.1 

On July 24, 2020, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2020 

notifying amendment to existing Ind AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements', Ind AS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Estimates and 

Errors', Ind AS 10 'Events after the Reporting Period', Ind AS 34 'Interim Financial Reporting', Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 

and Contingent Assets', Ind AS 103 'Business Combinations', Ind AS 107 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures', Ind AS 109 'Financial 

Instruments' These amendments have been effective for the period beginning on or after April 01, 2020. 

Ind AS 1 has been modified to redefine the term 'Material' and consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 8, Ind AS 34 and Ind 

AS 37. 

Ind AS 103 dealing with 'Business Combination' has defined the term 'Business' to determine whether a transaction or event is a business 

combination. Amendment to Ind AS 107 and 109 relate to exception relating to hedging relationship directly affected by Interest Rate 

Benchmark reforms. 

Presently, the Company is evaluating the impact as these amendments are either not applicable or not likely to have any material impact 

on Financial Statements of the Company. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Preparation 

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis excepting certain financial instruments 

which are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair value/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period. 

Historical cost convention rs generally based on the fair value of the cons1derat1on given in exchange for goods and services. 

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs upto two decimal places. 

Fair Value Measurement 

Farr value rs the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a l1abil1ty in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date under current market conditions. 

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs 

employed for such measurement: 



HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly for the asset or liability. 

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has 

overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation 

adjustments and fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified. 

3.2 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 

or issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are 

added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 

costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 

immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current 1f they are expected to be realised or settled within operating cycle of 

the company or otherwise these are classified as non-current. 

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or at 

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. 

Classification of financial instruments are determined on initial recognition. 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an 

insignificant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as 

cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cos 

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost. 

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest 

Rate (EIR) method. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or 

received, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the 

gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the 

net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

(iii) Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose 

ob1ect1ve is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset 

give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive 

income. 

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (111) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists of 

consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk. 

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss 

Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are classified 

as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and 

loss. 

(vi) Impairment of financial assets 

A financial asset 1s assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset 1s considered to be 1mpa1red if objective evidence 

indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk 

on that financial instrument has increased significantly since init~~al r~ecognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased 
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HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-

month expected credit losses. 

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures 

the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

On derecognit1on of a f1nanc1al asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset's carrying 

amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

On derecogn1t1on of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 1n other comprehensive income 1s 

reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment 

Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company's obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The 

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.3 Equity Share Capital 

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Par 

value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess of par value is classified as Securities Premium. 

Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

3.4 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions involving substantial degree of est1mat1on in measurement are recognized when there 1s a legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 

obligation. Prov1s1ons are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision 1s the best estimate of the 

consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation 

arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 

future events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a present obl1gat1on that arises from past events where it is 

either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect 

cannot be made. 

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic 
benefits 1s probable. 

3.5 Recognition of Dividend and Interest Income 

Dividend Income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits 

associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when the 

shareholders or Board of Directors approve the dividend. 

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at 

amortised cost. The EIR 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 

instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 

The EIR (and therefore the amortised cost of the asset) 1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees 

and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 

3.6 Taxes on Income 

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expense and the net charge of the deferred taxes 1s recognized in the income 

statement except to the extent that 1t relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income. 

Current tax 1s provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, 

using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and 

the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable 

temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deduct>~lr--- ~ ra.rv differences can be utilized 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

4 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or 

the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) measured 1n accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future 

economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability and such benefit can be measured reliably and it is 

probable that the future economic benefit associated with same will be realized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

3.7 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are computed by d1v1ding the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the company by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share is computed by d1v1ding the net profit 

attributable to the equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 

earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares 

Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key sources of estimation and uncertainty 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires management to make 

estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the 

reported amounts of assets and l1abil1ties, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results 

could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in 

circumstances surrounding the estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the 

results are known I materialized and, 1f material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments and the use of 

assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed below. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of 

estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 

assets and liabilities w1th1n the next financial year are discussed below: 

4.1 Current Tax and Deferred Tax 

S1gn1f1cant 1udgment 1s required 1n determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation 

of the prov1s1on for income taxes. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused losses (carry forward of prior years' losses) and unused tax credit to the extent that it 1s 

probable that taxable profit would be available against which the losses could be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to 

determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits 

together with future tax planning strategies. 

4.2 Provisions and Contingencies 

Prov1s1ons and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from 

past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the 

liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. 

Management judgment 1s required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations/ 

against the Company as 1t 1s not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

The carrying amounts of prov1s1ons and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of 

changing facts and circumstances. 
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5 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars 
Refer Note As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

No. 2020 2019 
As at 1st April, 2018 

Balances with banks 
Jn current accounts 2.61 1.31 3.45 

Total 2.61 1.31 3.45 

6 Investments 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

Particulars Refer Note No Face Value 
Number/ 

Amount 
Number/ 

Amount 
Number/ 

Amount 
Units Units Units 

Investment in Mutual Funds 

Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss 

Unquoted 

IDFC Banking Debt Fund - Growth 10 8,30.269 71 147.32 8,30,269.71 133.50 46,947.92 6.93 

IDFC Super Saver Income Fund - Growth 10 16,893.78 6.97 

IDFC Money Manager Fund Monthly Div. Payout 10 40,536.70 4 18 

IDFC Low Duration Growth 10 2,02,905.20 57.96 2,09,958.25 55.63 

IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Weekly Div Reinvestment 10 45,655.10 4.61 

UTI Treasury Advantage fund-Flex1 Div Plan-Payout 1000 2,433.02 26 58 

UTI Treasury Advantage fund-Weekly Dividend Reinvestment 1000 7,837.10 78.75 

205.28 189.13 128.02 

Investment in Equity Instruments of Bodies Corporate 

Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 

- Quoted 

Reliance Industries Limited 10 4,000 44.50 4,000 54.52 4,000 35 31 

Reliance Capital L1m1ted 10 50 0 21 

Reliance Power Limited 10 250 0.09 

Reliance Communication Limited 5 1,000 0.22 

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 10 75 0.32 

Reliance Home Finance Limited 

(share received as per scheme of Arrangement with 10 50 0.03 

Reliance Capital Limited - Ratio 1:1) 

- Unquoted 

Lodha Capital Markets Limited 2,43,000 528.48 2,43,000 649.85 2,64,000 690.47 

v 572.97 704.38 726.65 
·~ ! ' 

Total / 778.25 893.51 854.67 

!, .1 

6.1 Investments within India 778.25 893.51 854.67 
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7 Current Tax Assets (Net) 

(Rs. in lakh~ 

Particulars Refer Note No. As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 7.1 0.0 

Total 0.05 .. .. 

7.1 Advance Income Tax is net of provision for tax of Rs.Nil (March 31, 2019 - Rs. Nil, April 1, 2018 - Rs. Nil) 

8 Trade Payables 

(Rs. in lakh! 

Particulars Refer Note No. As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

At Amortised Cost 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises 
0.1 0.12 0.1: 

Total 0.12 0.12 0.1; 

8.1 Disclosure of amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises is based on information available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers as define 

under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (MSMED). 

9 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Particulars Refer Note No. As at 31st March, 2020 

Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 9.1 

Total .. 

9.1 Provision for tax is net of advance tax of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019 - Rs. Nil, April 1, 2018 - Rs. Nil) 

10 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Less : Deferred Tax Assets 

Deferred Tax Liabilities I (Assets) (Net) 

10.1 Components of deferred tax liabilities I (assets) are as follows : 

As at 31st March 2020 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Difference in carrying value and tax base of investments 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Total Deferred Tax Assets 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Refer Note No. As at 31st March, 2020 

142.2 

142.24 

As at 1st April 2019 
Charge/(Credit) in Profit 

and Loss 

165 93 4.99 

165.93 4.99 

<; .. ::. .. :.~5.93 4.99 
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(Rs. in lakhs 

As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

0.02 

0.02 .. 

(Rs. in lakhs 

As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

165.93 154 9; 

165.93 154.91 

(Rs. in lakhsJ 

Charge/(Credit) in Other 
As at 31st March 2020 

Comprehensive Income 

(28 69) 142.24 

(28.69) 142.24 

(28.69) 142.24 



As at 31st March 2019 
(Rs. in lakhs] 

Particulars As at 1st April 2018 
Charge/(Credit) in Profit Charge/(Credit) in Other 

As at 31st March 2019 
and Loss Comprehensive Income 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Difference in carrying value and tax base of investments 154.97 3.96 7.01 165.93 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 154.97 3.96 7.01 165.93 

Total Deferred Tax Assets 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 154.97 3.96 7.01 165.93 

11 Equity Share Capital 

(Rs. in lakhs] 

Particulars Refer Note No. As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

Authorised 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 

249,000 (31st March, 2019: 249,000 and 1st April, 2018: 249,000) 24.90 24.90 24.90 

equity shares 

Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 

100 (31st March, 2019: 100 and 1st April, 2018: 100} preference 0.10 0.10 0.10 

shares 

25.00 25.00 25.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 

220,000 (31st March, 2019: 220,000 and 1st April, 2018: 220,000) 22.00 22.00 22.00 

equity shares 

Total 22.00 22.00 22.00 

11.1 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The Company mav 

declare and pay dividends. The dividend, if any proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of 

all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by Equity Shareholders. 

11.2 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding : 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

Number of shares as at the beginning of the year 2,20,000 2,20,000 2,20,000 

Movement during the year 

Number of shares as at the end of the year 2,20,000 2,20,000 2,20,000 

11.3 Details in respect of shares in the company held up by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares: 

Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

Alfred Herbert (India) Limited (Holding Company) 

- Number of shares held 2,20,000 2,20,000 2,20,000 

- Percentage of shares held 100% 100% 100% 

-~· 



12 Other Equity 

(Rs. in lakh 

Particulars Ref Note No As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 201! 

Capital Reserve 12.2 0.50 0.50 0.5 

Securities Premium 12.3 48.00 48.00 48.0 

Capital Redemption Reserve 12.4 0.01 O.Dl 0.0 

Statutory Reserve (in terms of Section 451C of Reserve Bank of India 
12.5 

Act, 1934) 
22.68 22.68 13.5 

General Reserve 12.6 20.00 20.00 20.0 

Retained Earnings 12.7 62.62 50.09 59.6 

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

· Equity Instruments through OCI 12.8 462.75 565.4 7 539.3 

Total 616.56 706.75 681.C 

12.1 Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for movement in balances of reserves 

Nature and purpose of reserves: 

12.2 Capital Reserve 

Capital Reserve is a reserve which is not free for distribution. This reserve was created in the year 1992·93 against consideration received on transfer of hire purcha 

business. 

12.3 Securities Premium 

Securities Premium represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities and is available for utilisation as specified under Section 52 of Companies Ac 

2013. 

12.4 Capital Redemption Reserve 

This reserve has been created on redemption of Preference Shares. 

12.5 Statutory Reserve (in terms of Section 451C of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934) 

Statutory Reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the "RBI Act") and related regulations applicable to those companiE 

Under the RBI Act, a Non Banking Financial Company is required to transfer an amount not less than 20% of its net profit to a reserve fund before declaring any dividen 

The Company after cancellation of certificate of registration by RBI ceased to be a NBFC. However, considering the fact that the Company has already achieved NOF 

Rs.200 lakhs and has also made an application for registration as a NBFC, it has decided to continue the practice of transferring 20% of its net profit to Statutory Resen 

before declaring any d1v1dend. 

12.6 General Reserve 

The general reserve is created from time to time by appropriating profits from Retained Earnings. The general reserve is created by a transfer from one component 

equity to another. Accordingly, 1t 1s not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

12.7 Retained Earnings 

Retained earnings generally represents the undistributed profit/ amount of accumulated earnings of the company. 

12.8 Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 

The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). These changes a 

accumulated within OCI in equity. The company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised. 
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13 Dividend Income 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Refer Note For the year ended 
For the year 

I 
Particulars ended 31st March, 

No. 31st March, 2020 I 
2019 

I 

Dividend income on investments measured at Fair Value through 
0.26 0.84 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total 0.26 0.84 

14 Net gain on fair value changes 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Refer Note For the year ended 
For the year 

Particulars ended 31st March, 
No. 31st March, 2020 

2019 

Net gain on investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and 

Loss 
18.15 14.23 

Total 18.15 14.23 

14.1 Details of net gain on investments measured at fair value through Profit and Loss 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

For the year ended 
For the year 

Particulars ended 31st March, 
31st March, 2020 

2019 

Realised 0.22 6.66 

Unrealised 0.00 0.00 

Total 0.22 6.66 

15 Other Expenses 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Refer Note For the year ended 
For the year 

Particulars ended 31st March, 
No. 31st March, 2020 

2019 

Rates and Taxes 0.05 0.05 

Auditors' Remuneration 

Statutory Audit Fees 0.10 0.10 

Other Services - 0.02 

Legal and Professional Fees 0.58 0.25 

Miscellaneous Expenditure 0.12 0.21 

Total 0.85 0.63 
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16 Tax Expenses- Current Tax 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 March, 2019 

Provision for Current Tax - 0.00 

Total - 0.00 

16.1 Components of Tax Expense: 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 March, 2019 

Current tax 

In respect of the current year 0.00 

Total Current tax expense recognised in the current year - 0.00 

Income Tax for earlier years 

In respect of earlier years 0.00 

Total tax expense recognised in the current year in respect of earlier years 0.00 -

Deferred tax 

In respect of the current year 0.00 0.00 

Total Deferred tax expense recognised in the current year 0.00 0.00 

Total Tax expense recognised in the current year 0.00 0.00 

16.2 Reconciliation of Income tax expense for the year with accounting profit is as follows: 

Taxable Income differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 1n other years and 

items that are never taxable or deductible. Details in this respect are as follows: 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 March, 2019 

Profit before tax 0.00 0.00 

Tax Rate 26.00% 26.00% 

Income tax expense calculated at rate applicable 0.00 0.00 

Less: Effect of income Exempt from taxation/ deductible for computing taxable profit 

Tax exempt income -0.07 -0.22 

Effect of fair valuation of investments 0.33 0.26 

Income tax at different rate 11.04 

Effect of other adjustments 0.21 

Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 0.47 11.08 

The tax rate used for reconciliations above 1s 26% (Previous Year: 26%) as applicable for corporate entities on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws. 

16.3 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 March, 2019 

Deferred tax 

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income: 

Net gain on fair valuation of investments in equity shares measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (28.69) 7.01 

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (28.69) 7.01 

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into: 
~ 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

£~ ~~ 
(28 69) 7.01 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 
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17 Components of Other Comprehensive Income 

Particulars 

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

Net gain on fair valuation of investments in equity shares measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 

Total 

18 Related Party Disclosures 

A 

Related parties have been identified in terms of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" as listed below : 

List of Related Parties where control exists 

Name of the Related Parties 

Alfred Herbert (India) Limited 

B Transactions with related parties are as follows: 

There 1s no transaction with related parties during the year. 

Note : The above related party 1nformat1on 1s as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditor. 

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 

Relationship 

Holding Company 

(131.40) 

(131.40) 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2019 

33.12 

33.12 
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19 Financial Instruments 

The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows:-

(Rs. in lakhs) 

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018 

Particulars 
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value 

Financial Assets 

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.61 2.61 1.31 1.31 3.45 3.45 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 

Investment 1n Mutual Funds 205.28 205.28 189.13 189.13 128.02 128.02 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive 

Income 

Investment 1n Equity Instruments of Bodies Corporate 572.97 572.97 704.38 704.38 726.65 726.65 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost 

Trade Payables 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 

Fair Valuation Techniques 

The fair values of the f1nanc1al assets and l1ab1l1t1es are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and trade payables approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial 

assets and f1nanc1al I 1abil 1t1es recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost 1n the financial statements approx1 mate their fair values 

Investments traded in active market are determined by reference to the quotes from the Stock exchanges as at the reporting date Investment in unquoted equity shares have been valued based on the latest audited financial 

statements. Investments 1n mutual funds have been valued based on their respective net asset value as on the reporting date 

Fair value hierarchy 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at balance sheet date 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

As at Fair value measurements at reporting date using 
Particulars 

March 31 
Level 1 Level 2 level 3 

Financial Assets 

Investment 1n Mutual Funds 205 28 205.28 

(189.13) (189.13) 

[128.02) [128.02) 

Investment 1n Equity Instruments 572.97 44.50 528.48 

(704.38) (54.52) (649.85) 

[726.65] [3618) [690.47] 

(')Figures 1n round brackets (I indicate figures as at March 31, 2019 and in brackets []indicate figures as at April 1, 2018 
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Notes To Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 

The Inputs used in fair valuation measurement are as follows: 

Fair valL;at1on of F1nanc1al assets and liab1i1t1es not within the operating cycle of the company 1s amortised based on the Effective Interest Rate. 

F1nanc1ai ·nstruments are valued based on quoted prices for s1mflar assets and liabilities 1n active markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable 1n the marketplace. !n respect of unquoted equity shares, the inputs 

used was the audited balance sheet for the year then available 

Financial Risk Factors 

The Company's act1v1t1es are exposed to variety of financial risks The key financial risks includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus 1s to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to 

minimize potential adverse effects on its f1nanc1al performance. The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing these risks The risks are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and accordingly 

financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market fluctuations resulting 1n variation in the fa 1r value off uture cash flows of a financial instrument. The maJor components of Market risks are currency risk, interest 

rate risk and other price risk Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments and trade payables 

Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes 1n foreign exchange rates. The Company doesn't have exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange 

rates and hence 1s not subjected to such risk 

Interest rate risk 

The company doesn't have exposure in market risk relating to change in interest rate as it doesn't have any borrowed funds whether in fixed rate or floating rate. 

Other price risk 

The Company 1s exposed to price risk arising from investments 1n Equity Shares held by the Company and is classified in the balance sheet as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income. The Company is also exposed to 

price fl'.)k arising from investments 1n Mutual Funds held by the Company and is classified in the balance sheet as Fair value through Profit and Loss. 

To manage its price risk ar1s1ng from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk 1s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company ls currently not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. 

The management has a credit policy 1n place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. 
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HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes To Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 

Cash and cash equivalents and investments are neither past due nor impaired. Cash and cash equlvalents with banks are held with reputed and credit worthy banking institutions. 

Liquidity Risk 

L1qu1d1ty risk 1s defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price The Company's ob1ective 1s to maintain optimum level of l1qu1dity to meet it's cash and 

collateral requirements at all times 

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities 

As at 31st March, 2020 

Particulars Carrying Amount On Demand Less than 6 months 6 to 12 months 

Trade Payables 0.12 0.12 

As at 31st March, 2019 

Particulars Carrying Amount On Demand Less than 6 months 6 to 12 months 

Trade Payables 0.12 0 12 

As at 1st April, 2018 

Particulars Carrying Amount On Demand Less than 6 months 6 to 12 months 

Trade Payables 0.12 0.12 

The company has financial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business The Company ensures that 1t has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses 

The company relies on operating cash flows to meet its need for funds. 

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

> 1 year Total 

0.12 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

> 1 year Total 

0.12 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

> 1 year Total 

0.12 

The primary objective of the Company's capital management 1s to ensure that 1t maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and max1m1se shareholder value. The Company's objective when managing 

ca pita I is to safeguard their ability to continue as a grnng concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stake holders The Company is focused on keeping strong total equity base 

to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flex1 bility for potential future borrowings, if required without where the risk profile of the Company 

Since at present there 1s no borrowings obtained by the company so Capital Gearing Ratio is not disclosed hereunder 
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HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes To Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

20 Earnings Per Share 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Year ended 31st March, Year ended 31st March, 

Particulars 2020 2019 

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) 12.53 (040) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS (B) 2,20,000 2,20,000 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS (C) 2,20,000 2,20,000 
Basic earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (face value of Rs. 10/- per 

share) (A) I (Bi 5.69 (0.18) 

Diluted earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (face value of Rs 10/- per 

share) (A) I I C) S.69 (0.18) 

v 



HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

21 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF Ind AS- 01sclosures, Reconcihat1on etc. 

a) Reconc1hation in terms of Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards" 

Reconcil1atmn of Equity a~ at 31st March, 2019 dnd 1st Apnl, 2018 

(Rs in lakhs) 

As at 31st March, 2019 (End of last period presented under As at 1st April, 2018 {Date of transition) 

Previous GAAP) 

Particulars 
Ref Note No. 

(Under 21 (c)) As per Prevrous Effect of transition As per Ind AS As per Previous Effect of transition As per Ind AS 

GAAP to Ind AS GAAP to Ind AS 

ASSETS 

(I) Financial Assets 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.31 (0.00) 0.00 3 IJ.5 (0.00) 0.00 
(b) Investments (i) & (11) 205.28 (000) O.Dl 157.26 (000) O.Dl 

Total Financial Assets 206.59 (0.00) 0.01 160.71 (0.00) 0.01 

Total Assets 206.59 ID.DOI O.Dl 160. 71 ID.DO 0.01 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

(I) Financial l1ab1ht1es 

(a) Payables 

Trade Payables 

(1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

and small enterprises 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditor:. other 0 12 0.00 0 12 0.00 

than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total Financial Liabilities 0.12 0.00 0.12 0.00 

(JI) Non Financial L1abilit1es 

(a) Current Tax L1abil1t1es (Net) 0.02 O.D2 
(b) Deferred Tax Llab!11t1es (Net) (111) 0.00 165.93 0.00 154.97 

Total Non Financial Uab11it1es 0.02 0.00 165.95 0.00 154.97 

Total Liabilities 0.13 0.00 165.95 0.12 0.00 154.97 

(Ill) Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 0.00 0 00 22.00 (0.00) 0.00 
(b) Other Equity (1),(11)&(111) 183.96 (0.00) 001 138.59 (0.00) 0 01 

Total Equity 183.96 (0.00\ O.Dl 160.59 IQ.DOI 0.01 

Total Liabilities and Equity 184.09 11.00) 164.96 160.71 ID.DOI 154.98 

ii) Reconciliation of Total Equity as given above 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

As at 
As at 1st April, 

Ref Note 
31st March, 2019 

2018 
Particular~ (End of last period 

(Date of No.(Under 21 (c)) 
presented under 

Previous GAAP) 
transition) 

Total equity (shareholders' funds) under Previous GAAP 183.96 160.59 

Effect of fair valuation of Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (1) 11.85 4.27 

Effect of fair valuation of Investments measured al Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (ii) 676 38 693.14 

Impact of Deferred Tax on above (111) (0.00) (0.00) 

Total adjustments to Equity 688.22 697.41 

Total Equity under Ind AS 872.18 858.00 



HERBERT HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

iii) Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 201 g 

(Rs in lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year 

Particulars 
Ref Note 3Jst March, 2019 Ind AS ended 31st 

No (Under 21 (c)) (as per Previous Adjustments March, 2019 

GAAP) (as per Jnd AS) 

I. Revenue from Operations 

(1) D1v1dend Income 0.84 0.00 

(ii) Net Gain on Fair value changes (i)&(11) 56.53 (42.30) 14.23 

Total Revenue from Operations (I) 57.37 (42.30) 14.23 

Ill. Total Income 57.37 (42.30) 14.23 

IV. Expenses 

(1) Other Expenses 0.63 (0.00) 0.00 

Total Expenses {IV) 0.63 (0.00) 0.00 

V. Profit before lax (Ill - IV) 56.74 (42.30) 14.23 

Tax Expenses 

(\)Current Tax 10.88 10.88 

(ll) Deferred Tax - charge/(cred1t) (111) 0.00 3.96 

Total Tax Expenses {VI) 10.88 0.00 14.84 

VII. Profit/ (Loss) for the period (V - VI) 45.86 (42 30) (0.61) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

(1) Items that will not be reclass1f1ed to profit or loo:,s (11) 0.00 33 12 

(11) Income Tax relating to above (111) 0.00 7 01 

VIII. Total Other Comprehensive Income (i - ii) 0.00 26.11 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+ VIII) 45.86 (42.30) 25.50 

iv) iv) Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2019: 

(Rs in lakhs) 

Ref Note 
For the Year 

Particulars ended 31st 
No.(Under 21 (c)) 

March, 2019 

Net profit for the penod under previous GAAP 46 

Fair valuation of Investments in mutual tunds measured at fair value through profit and loss (1) 0 

Gain on sale of equity 1nstrumenb transferred to Other Comprehensive Income (11) (50) 

Effect of Taxes on above (111) (0) 

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period under Ind AS (4) 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes) (11) & (1i1) 26 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period under Ind AS 22 

v) Effect of Ind AS ddopt1on on the statement of cash flows tor the year ended 31st March, 2019 

There l'l no impact on the Statement of Cash Flows tor the year ended 31 <it March, 2019 due to adoption of Jnd AS 

b) FIRST-TIME ADOPTION - Mandatory Exceptions and optional Exemptions 

These f1nanc1al 'ltatements are covered by Ind AS 101, "First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards", as they are the Company's first Ind AS f1nanc1al statements for the year ended 31st March, 

2020. 

Overall principle· 

a) The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as at 1st April, 2018 (the trans1t1on date} by recognii:ing all assets and liabilities whose recognition 1s required by Ind AS, not 

recognizing items of assets or l1abll1t1es which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying certain items from Previous GAAP to Jnd AS as required under the Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in the 

measurement of recognized assets and l1abll1t1es. The accounting pol1c1es that the Company used 1n its opening Ind-AS Ba!ance Sheet may have differed from those that 1t used for its previous GAAP 

The resulting adjustments a ming from events and transactions occurring before the date of transition to Ind-AS has been recognized directly 1n retained earnmgs at the date of trans1t1on 

b) However, this principle 1s 'lUbject to certam optional exemptions dvailed by the Company as detailed below 

ii) Derecognit1on of fmanc.1al dssets and tmanc1al l1abll1t1es 
Tl11? Cu1nµa11y hd~' dµµl1eJ the Je1t~Lug111t1u1, re4u1re111t"rit_, ut t111unuul d ,,t:'L':. u11d l111d11Ud• lldb1iltll.:'.:, µ1(1sµeLl1vt1 l'y lur ltct11_,,h..l.u11s L•LLur1i111;; l1l1 u1 um.;1 isl ,\~irli, ~ulr:, ltlk lta11~1!1u11 .J;iil'J 

iii) Impairment of f1nanc1al assets 
Ind AS 109 "FmcinUdl lmtrumer1b requ1rt:'_, tht- 1mµct1r111t11l l1J bt- LJr11ed uul 1t'trosµeLllVt:'ly, t1uweve1, .is µerr111lli.oci Uy 111d ;\S JU!, tl11:: Lt;lll~idtly, fld) u~eJ rt'd'.:iOl1dbif' rJ11d ',ui;puitablt- 11,turr11dt1u11 

that 1s dVa1tab!e without undue co~t or effort to determine the ued1t risk at the date that f1nanc1al 1nstrurnenb were 1n1t1ally rec.ogn1zed in order to compare 1t with the credit risk at the tran:.1t1on date 

Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for 1nformat1on when determining, at the date of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been s1gn1f1cant increase~ 1ri credit mk since 

initial recogn1t1on, ds permitted by Ind AS 101. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

c) Explanatory Notes to reconcil1at1on between Prevmus GAAP and Ind AS 

Fair valuation of Investments in mutual funds 

Under previous GAAP, investments 1n mutual funds were measured at lower of cost or market price 

Under Ind AS, these investments 1n rnutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and lms and accordingly, difference between the fair value and carrying value 1s recognised m Statement of 

profit and loss. 

On trans1t1on, the Company has recognised a gain of Rs. 11,84,684 and Rs. 4,27,395 as at 31st March, 2019 and 1st April, 2018 1n respect of Mutual Funds with corresponding increase in total equity. 

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments 

Under previous GAAP, investment':> 1n equity instruments were stated dt cost !ess prov1s1on, 1f any, for d1minut1on 1n value other than temporary. 

Under Ind AS, the Company has made an irrevocable dec1s1on to consider equity instruments not held for trading to be recognised at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 

On transition, the Company has recognised a gain of Rs. 6,76,37,963 and Rs 6,93,13,728 as at 31st March, 2019 and 1st Apn!, 2018 respectively in Other Comprehensive Income with corresponding 

increase 1n the carrying value of such investments 

iii) Taxation 

Deferred tax has been recognized in respect of on accounting differences between previous GAAP and !nd AS These adjustments have resulted increase 1n deferred tax l1ab1!ities and adjustment m 

equity by Rs. 1.65,93,483 and Rs 1,54,96,838 as at 31st March, 2019 and 1st April, 2018 respectively. 

iv) Previous GAAP figures have been reclass1ted/regrouped wherever necessary to confirm with f1nanc1al statements prepared under Ind AS 

22 The Company does not have any employee of its own, hence prov1s1ons of The Employees' Provident Funds Act, 1952, Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, The 

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 are not applicable to the Company 

23 The Directors have waived their respective s1tt1ng fees payable to them. 

24 Segment Reporting 

The Company operates mainly 1n one business segment 1.e, Investment act1v1t1es and all other act1v1t1es revolve around the main act1v1ty and as such there are no other reportable segment as 

identified by the Chief Operating Dec1s1on Maker of the company as required under Ind AS 108 

25 The Appellate Authority of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) ha.:. rejected the Company's appeal against RBl's order dated 29th October, 2018 (Appellate Order) cancelling the Company's Certificate of 

Registration for the purpose of dlleged fdilure to comply w1tt1 the d1rect1ons of RBI issued v1de Circular No. RBl/2014-15/520 DNBF(PD) dated 27th March, 2015 requ1r1ng alt NBFCs to attend d Net 

Owned Fund (NOF) of Rs. 200 lakhs by 31st March, 2017. The above dppetlate order was pas<>ed irrespective of the fact that the Company had an 1ntr1ns1c Net Worth of Rs.751 lakhs as on 31st March, 

2017 and Rs. 977 lakhs as on 31st March, 2018 and 1t has achieved NOF of Rs 200 lakhs on 20th September, 2018 as required 1n terms of said circul;:ir Without prejudice to the Company's contention 

against the above Appellate Order, 1n order to comply the same, the Company has since l1qu1dated 1t~ investments whereby the Financial Assets has become less than 50% of the Total Assets of the 

Company required 1r1 terms of the Press Release 1998-99/1269 dated 8th April, 1999. The Company has since made an application for reg1strat1on as NBFC which 1s pending before RBI and thereby, 

the accounts of the Company have been prepared on go1ne concern basis 

26 
Consequent to outbreak of COVID - 19 which has been declared a pandemic by the World Health Organisation (WHO), Government of India and State-Governments have declared lockdown which 

have impacted business in general, earnings prospects causing erosion in value of companies. The resultant impact on the fair valuation of investment have been reflected in Profit or loss and the 

Other Comprehensive Income statement of the Company. The stock exchanges were permitted to function uninterruptedly during the lockdown and as such investment and related operations of 

the Company were not affected substantially. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of financial and non-financial assets 

held by the Company. The eventual impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue 

to monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions and the same will be considered on crystallisation. 

27 These finannal statements hdVP been dpproved by the Board of 011ector'> of the Company on 28th July, 2020 for issue to the shareholders for tht>1r adoption 
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